
Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01 Minutes.doc   

CITY OF RICHARDSON 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 

 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on September 1, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 

Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman 

  Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 

  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 

  Bill Ferrell, Commissioner 

  Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner 

  Stephen Springs, Alternate 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 

  Randy Roland, Commissioner 

 

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. – Planning 

  Dan Tracy, Development Engineer   

  Israel Roberts, Development Manager 

  Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner  

  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 

 

BRIEFING SESSION 
 

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 

staff reports and agenda items.  No action was taken. 

 

MINUTES 

 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of August 18, 2015. 
 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by 

Commissioner Maxwell.  Motion approved 6-0. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these 

items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate 

consideration. 

 

2. Revised Site & Landscape Plans – Campbell Creek Office (companion to Item 3): A 

request for approval of revised site and landscape plans to reflect a 45,158-square foot 

expansion to the existing office building.  The 20.4-acre site is located at 2280 N. Greenville 

Avenue at the southwest corner of Greenville Avenue and Campbell Creek Boulevard.   

 

Motion: Commission Springs made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; 

second by Vice Chair Bright.  Motion approved 6-0. 

  



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  2 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

3. Replat – Campbell Creek Addition, Lot 5B, Block A (companion to Item 2):  Consider and 

take the necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Lots 5A and 6A, Block A of the 

Campbell Creek Addition to combine two (2) lots to accommodate a 45,158 square foot 

expansion to the existing office building.  The 20.4-acre site is located at 2280 N. Greenville 

Avenue at the southwest corner of Greenville Avenue and Campbell Creek Boulevard.   

 

Mr. Roberts stated the requested replat would combine two (2) lots to accommodate a building 

expansion approved under Item 2, and the replat complied with the City’s zoning and 

subdivision regulations. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

No comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the 

public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve Item 3 as presented; second by 

Commissioner Ferrell.  Motion approved 6-0. 

 

4. Replat – Pittman and Stults Addition, Lot 19, Block 3:  Consider and take the necessary 

action on a request for approval of a replat of a portion of Lot 9, Block 3 of the Pittman and 

Stults Addition to create a legal lot of record to accommodate future development.  The 0.25-

acre site is located at 334 Maple Street, at the southwest corner of Maple Street and Abrams 

Road. 

 

Mr. Roberts advised the replat would reflect the current ownership boundaries and create a legal 

lot of record from a portion of Lot 9.  He added the replat complied with the City’s subdivision 

standards. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

No comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the 

public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve Item 4 as presented; second by 

Vice Chair Bright.  Motion approved 6-0. 

 

5. Zoning File 15-14 – Crystal Creek PD Amendments (continued from August 4, 2015):  
Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval to amend the Crystal Creek PD 

Planned Development, Ordinance Number 3796, to modify development standards related to the 

development of an 11.3-acre single-family subdivision located on the west side of Holford 

Road, south of Chainhurst Drive. 

 

Mr. Shacklett reviewed information shared at the previous meeting including the history, 

location, and the current zoning request.  He explained that the current lot owners were 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  3 

requesting modifications to the existing PD conditions to accommodate the homes they 

proposed to build.  The modifications include:   

 Increasing maximum lot coverage;  

 Allowing the use of stucco as an exterior cladding material on twenty percent (20%) of 

the homes; 

 Allowing the combining of no more than two (2) lots with a total of ten (10) combined 

lots for the entire subdivision;  

 Front facing garages with minimum 20 foot setback from front of home; 

 Limiting roof material to asphalt shingles or tile (allowed throughout the City); and 

 Removal of Exhibit C 

 

Mr. Shacklett explained that Exhibit C contained guidelines for review of the homeowners 

association documents that were not part of the PD, but were referenced in the PD, and stated 

the City’s Chief Building Official (CBO) would be responsible for determining if the 

architectural style and design was “equal to, or better than” the homes in the adjoining 

neighborhoods, Creek Hollow Estates and the Oaks at Stoney Creek. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated that at the August 4, 2015 meeting, the item was tabled to allow the lot 

owners to meet with the adjacent homeowners and, as a result of those meetings, the three 

groups came up with the following changes: 

 

 Maximum lot coverage – Lot coverage would remain at 40% except for combined lots 

and those would be reduced to 35%. 

 Number of stucco homes and location – Allow up to 13 homes with 100% stucco 

cladding; 5 homes with 50% stucco cladding; and, remaining homes to meet the City’s 

standard masonry requirement and be limited to 25% stucco cladding.   

o Adjacent homeowners would like to have a maximum of 10 homes at 100% 

stucco cladding and in agreement with remaining number of homes and stucco 

cladding. 

o Adjacent homeowners would like lots along the northern boundary of Crystal 

Creek to be prohibited from using 100% stucco, specifically Lots 1, 12-15, 22-

23, and the seven single family lots adjacent to Chainhurst Drive.  Applicant did 

not agree to the limitation or location. 

o Adjacent homeowners wanted restrictions on home colors and applicant 

responded that color would be regulated by the Architectural Control Committee. 

 Combining lots – remains the same as the numbers proposed at the August 4
th

 meeting. 

 Roof materials – remains the same as the material proposed at the August 4
th

 meeting. 

 Remove Exhibit C from the PD, but take the requirement for three (3) trees on each lot 

and include that in the PD. 

 Front facing garages – prohibited on Lots 1-4 and 12-15 

o Applicant agreed that no more than two garage doors shall face the front property 

line. 

o Any home exceeding 5,000 square feet (excluding the porches, patio and garage) 

must provide three (3) enclosed parking spaces.  

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  4 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting that 20 pieces of correspondence in favor 

had been received, and 25 opposed. 

 

Chairman Hand asked staff to summarize the items that had not been agreed upon by the 

concerned parties.   

 

Mr. Shacklett said the number of stucco homes, the location of stucco homes, the number of 

required enclosed parking spaces, and some concerns regarding on-street parking. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if Exhibit C was removed, would that affect the roofing materials. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that staff had asked to have Exhibit C removed because of the 

contradiction regarding materials that could be used, and remove the requirement for the CBO 

to determine if a home was “equal to or greater than”. 

 

Regarding the number of stucco homes, Commissioner Springs asked if the statement 

“remaining homes would have to meet the City’s standard masonry requirement and be limited 

to 25% stucco” would cause confusion if the standards allow stucco over brick. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that staff wrote the statement to remove as much confusion as possible; 

therefore, the requirement was written as “exterior wall cladding material” as opposed to 

exterior wall construction. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked to confirm that after the 100% and 50% stucco requirements were met, 

the remaining homes could have 25% stucco exteriors. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said that was correct and noted that most homes used the 25% stucco on siding on 

the upper floors. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if there was a maximum home size. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied a maximum was not listed and the size of the home would be based on the 

maximum lot coverage. 

 

Chairman Hand reminded the audience the public hearing was still open from the August 4, 

2015 meeting and asked the applicant if he wanted to make a statement. 

 

Mr. Ahmed Helaluzzaman, representing Crystal Creek Homeowners Association (CCHOA), 

545 Coventry Drive, Grapevine, Texas, confirmed that CCHOA had met two times with the 

adjacent homeowner associations and said another member of the CCHOA board would be 

discussing in detail the results of those meetings. 

 

Mr. Riaz Uddin, 2245 Amy Lane, Plano, Texas, stated he was a lot owner and board member 

for CCHOA.  He thanked all who participated in the meetings and noted that although 

compromises had been made on both sides, there were still some items where an agreement 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  5 

could not be reached.  Those items included number and location of stucco homes, number of 

enclosed garage spaces, number of front facing garage spaces, and on-street parking. 

 

Mr. Uddin stated he felt stucco homes were high end homes and gave as an example the homes 

in Cantera and the Hills of Breckinridge.  In addition, the CCHOA felt that stucco homes in 

Cantera and Hills of Breckinridge did not detract from the brick homes in the neighborhood, nor 

did they need any type of transition area between the two. 

 

Regarding the exterior color of the stucco homes, Mr. Uddin stated the Covenants, Conditions 

and Restrictions (CCRs) gave control over the color to the ACC and the individual lots owners 

had purchased their property to build custom homes and would not be spending their money to 

build ugly homes. 

 

In closing his comments, Mr. Uddin said they were willing to work with the neighbors, and had 

come to terms on many items, but asked the Commission to pass the zoning request as currently 

presented.   

 

Mr. Abedellatif Bellaouar, 3908 Harlington Lane, Richardson, Texas, concurred with Mr. Uddin 

comments and said he was available for any questions. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell asked if the speaker knew of the design restrictions when he purchased 

the lot. 

 

Mr. Bellaouar replied yes, but under the current limitation the design of his home was proving 

to be very difficult and that was why he was requesting the amendments. 

 

Mr. Muhammad Isa, 146 Juniper Court, Coppell, Texas, said he was a medical doctor and a lot 

owner, and asked the Commission to base their decision on the fact that most of the requested 

changes were logical and allowed elsewhere in the City.   

 

Mr. Abrar Ansari, 2909 Saihan Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated he wanted to address the 

concerns over the parking and the pictures that had been submitted by those in opposition.  He 

noted that those pictures were not representative of how Crystal Creek would be and pointed out 

that in the adjacent subdivision there were many vehicles parked on the streets in front of homes 

at all hours of the day and night. 

 

Mr. Ansari asked the Commission to remember that homes in Crystal Creek with front facing 

garages would be required to set those garages 20 feet back of the front façade giving enough 

room to park vehicles in both the garage bays and the driveway.  He also stated that most of the 

homeowners will be constructing circular drives in front of their homes which will allow for 

more off-street parking. 

 

Mr. Sadak Shaik, 148 Wrenwood Drive, Coppell, Texas, said he was one of the lot owners and 

asked the Commission to make their decision based on the facts of the case and having a 

transition area along Chainhurst Drive, where his lot was located, was not fair and not called for. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  6 

Chairman Hand asked if the speaker knew the requirements of the CCRs when the lot was 

purchased and did the restrictions seem unfair at that time. 

 

Mr. Shaik replied yes, but he was under the impression that any homes in the subdivision could 

have stucco cladding as long as it was one of the 13 homes where stucco was allowed. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if the original PD contained any restrictions on Lots 12-15 preventing the 

use of stucco as a building material. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the only restrictions in place for Lots 12-15 was in regard to minimum lot 

sizes and placement of garages but not for building materials.  However, those lots, along with 

all the other lots in the subdivision, would fall under the conditions set in Exhibit C that 

addressed the CCRs and the required approval by the CBO. 

 

Mr. Syed Ansari, 10209 Savoy Drive, Plano, Texas, stated he was representing one of the 

builders from Crystal Creek and concurred that stucco homes were beautiful.  He also added 

that each custom home was designed for an individual home owner and their likes and dislikes. 

 

Chairman Hand stated there were two other appearance cards submitted in favor, but the 

individuals did not wish to speak so he called for comments in opposition. 

 

Mr. Craig Newman, 3066 Blackfield Drive, Richardson, Texas, reviewed some of the history of 

the case, and acknowledged the remarks from those in favor about making an investment, but 

pointed out that all the homeowners in Creek Hollow Estates had also made the same type of 

investment in time and money.  He expressed concerns that if those in favor were concerned 

about their investment, the fence and empty lots in the subdivision should be better maintained. 

 

Mr. Scott Roberts, 1026 Creekwood Drive, Garland, Texas, stated he was speaking on behalf of 

the Oaks of Stoney Creek Board of Directors and acknowledged the cooperation of both sides of 

the issue in the previous meetings, but stated they could not come to an agreement over the 

question of stucco homes.  He added that their proposal agreed to ten (10) homes at 100% 

stucco and the remainder at 25%. 

 

Mr. Roberts pointed out that the subdivisions of Cantera and Hills of Breckinridge did have 

stucco homes; however, their percentages of stucco homes were lower than what was being 

proposed for Crystal Creek.  He said if the percentage of stucco homes were to be increased it 

would present a stark contrast to the surrounding homes. 

 

Mr. Roberts asked if there was a request to change the CCRs would the request have to come 

back before the Commission. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied CCRs are not reviewed by City Council or Commission; however, the 

City Attorney reviews and approves CCRs for legal form as opposed to substance. 

 

Mr. Roberts pointed out that based on the amount of correspondence in support, the applicants 

had enough votes to change the CCRs and urged the Commission to make it clear in the PD that 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  7 

stucco was for cladding only, the number of garages should be limited to no more than three, 

and the colors should be limited to earth tones.  He also said he did not think the CCRs could be 

relied upon to govern the quality of construction. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if the speaker felt additional meetings would be useful. 

 

Mr. Roberts said the past meetings were very productive, but thought they had gone as far as 

they could. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell asked for clarification on the amount of stucco homes that was agreed 

upon in the citizen meetings. 

 

Mr. Roberts replied that ten (10) homes could be 100% stucco and the remainder would have 

25% stucco.  He added they had discussed having another five (5) homes with 50% stucco but 

nothing had been settled. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if ten (10) homes at 100%, five (5) at 50% and the remainder at 25% was 

acceptable. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the correspondence from the two groups - Creek Hollow Estates and the 

Oaks of Stoney Creek, seemed to indicate those levels were acceptable.  He also said several of 

the regulations and concerns addressed by Mr. Roberts were already in the PD, but there may be 

room to tighten up some of the verbiage on garages or other items. 

 

Commissioner DePuy pointed out that earlier comments stated there should be “two covered 

garages spaces” and felt that was sufficient. 

 

Mr. David Goulet, 3917 Marchwood Drive, Richardson, Texas, noted that speakers in favor had 

used Cantera as an example of a subdivision where stucco homes were built, but he asked the 

Commission to note that Cantera was not situated next to an existing subdivision.  He added that 

a transition area in Crystal Creek would prevent a glaring difference between the two adjacent 

subdivisions.   

 

Chairman Hand noted there were eight other speaker cards in opposition who did not wish to 

speak and called for any rebuttal comments from those in favor. 

 

Mr. Helaluzzaman thanked everyone for their comments, both in favor and opposed, and said 

the CCHOA that was already in place would control the design and color of the homes.  He also 

felt the many regulations placed on the CCHOA had added to some of the construction delays. 

Mr. Helaluzzman asked the Commission to approve their requests so the item could be 

presented to the City Council. 

 

Mr. Uddin stated that although the residents from Creek Hollow had purchased their homes with 

the knowledge the adjacent land was zoned industrial and did not seem to have a problem with 

that, the Crystal Creek subdivision was a better option and would be a beautiful community.  He 

also addressed the comments that the Crystal Creek property was purchased with full knowledge 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  8 

of the restrictions; however, the lot owners were also aware that the City allowed amendments 

to PDs and that was what they were attempting to do. 

 

Mr. Uddin concluded his comments by stating that the Crystal Creek CCRs were very strict, 

more so than other CCRs in the city, and would control the construction standards of the new 

homes.  Also, he noted that when the original agreement was made, it was made by the 

developer and the current changes were being requested by the lot owners and to ask the lots 

owners to conform to a subdivision that was built 20 years ago was unfair. 

 

With no other comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public hearing.  

 

Chairman Hand thanked everyone for their comments and shared his thoughts on the following: 

 

 PD Amendments - the City’s regulations allow for PD amendments and to be fair, those 

amendments are brought forward to allow comments and questions, but the regulations 

do not guarantee approval. 

 Design based on facts or evidence – when talking color or style there is not a lot of 

evidence that those items would raise or lower property values, but there is evidence 

regarding front entry garages and crowded parking. 

 Stucco cladding – the use of stucco was not the problem, it was more the quality of the 

design.  The Commission does not discuss style, but rather quality of design having to do 

with proportions, the way roofs meet buildings, etc. 

 Conforming to older subdivision – Exhibit C was a way to give a visual encyclopedia 

and how the new development could blend into the adjacent neighborhood, and by 

improving the quality of design everyone would benefit. 

 

Chairman Hand asked staff if there were any City requirements that would control the 

appearance of a construction site. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the site had received high-grass and construction debris notices that 

needed to be taken care of, but as far as a deadline for constructing buildings on the lots there 

did not seem to be anything in the City codes to cover that concern. 

 

Chairman Hand asked for clarification on how and when the CCRs could be changed. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said the CCRs could be changed and read the process from the City’s Subdivision 

and Development code.  He added that when CCRs are submitted they are reviewed by staff 

then the City Attorney as to the common areas and conformance with the Fair Housing Act, and 

these sections cannot be changed without City approval.  However, the remaining restrictions of 

the CCRs can be amended by a majority of the owners and/or the ACC. 

 

Commissioner Springs said he applauded the effort by both sides to try and work out their 

differences, and still did not like asking a city staff member to be the arbiter of style, but did 

think stucco was an acceptable building material.  He added that a buffer zone might be 

something that could work to smooth the transition between the two subdivisions. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  9 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the CBO would be making a determination on any of the issues being 

discussed. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that if Exhibit C was removed, the CBO would no longer be involved. 

 

Vice Chair Bright said he appreciated the effort of all involved and shared his thoughts on the 

issues:  on-street parking – he did not think Crystal Creek would have more on-street parking 

than any other neighborhood in the City; buffer zone – did not think it should be required; and 

asked staff if the language regarding garage doors needed to be changed. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said the sentence could be revised to read “no more than two front facing garage 

spaces shall be allowed”. 

 

Commissioner DePuy concurred with Mr. Bright’s statement and added the “equal to or better 

than” was an unfair criteria; was not in favor of a transition area; previous industrial zoning 

decreased the value of the adjacent homes, whereas the new subdivision when done carefully 

and with care will increase the value; three car garage was a good compromise for larger homes; 

and the CCRs should be allowed to do their job and take the CBO out of the equation.  She 

added that she would be voting in favor of the item as presented. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell asked for clarification on what the Commission should be reviewing 

before a motion was made. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that the special conditions on pages 3 and 4 of the staff report listed both 

the original and revised language (red) and what the Commission should base their decision on: 

 

1. The maximum lot coverage shall be 40%, except for combined lots as defined in 

Condition #3 shall be limited to a maximum lot coverage of 35%. (Agreed) 

 

2. Up to twenty (20) homes may use stucco as an exterior cladding material for up to 100% 

of the total exterior.  The remaining homes shall comply with Article XXII-F of the 

Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and stucco shall not exceed 25% of the total exterior 

cladding material.  Up to thirteen (13) homes may use stucco as an exterior cladding 

material for up to 100% of the total exterior.  Up to five (5) homes may use stucco as an 

exterior cladding material for up to 50% of the total exterior.  The remaining homes 

shall comply with Article XXII-F of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and stucco 

shall not exceed 25% of the total exterior cladding material.   

 

3. No more than two (2) originally platted residential lots as shown on replat as Crystal 

Creek filed with Collin County on June 29, 2011, may be combined into a single lot.  A 

maximum of ten (10) lots may be combined.  In no instance shall lots be combined to 

create a lot with double frontage.  (No Change/Agreed) 

 

4. For front facing garages, garage doors shall be set back a minimum of twenty (20) feet 

from the front façade of the home.  Front facing garages shall be prohibited on Lots 1-4 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  10 

and Lots 12-15.  No more than two (2) garage doors shall face the front property line.  

For homes exceeding 5,000 square feet in area (excluding garage, porch, or patio area), 

a minimum of three (3) enclosed parking spaces shall be provided. 

 

5. Roof materials shall be limited to asphalt shingles or tile and shall be in accordance 

with Chapter 6-31 of the City of Richardson Code of Ordinances. (No Change/Agreed) 

 

6. Remove Exhibit “C” from the PD and add the following condition from Exhibit “C” to 

the PD; 

a. All residential lots within Crystal Creek shall contain a minimum of three (3) 

trees that are a minimum three (3) inches in diameter, either existing or new.  

(No change/Agreed) 
 

Chairman Hand asked if the color of the stucco was addressed and if the CBO would still review 

the designs. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that the CBO would still review the plans for conformance to the masonry 

requirements, but not for the “equal or better than” architectural character of the design. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if there was already a transition zone listed in the PD for the lots 

facing Chainhurst Drive. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied there was a requirement for those homes to be larger in size. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell said he thought it was unfair to make the changes because the PD had 

been approved based on good-faith efforts between the Creek Hollow homeowners and the 

developer to blend the new development in with the adjacent subdivisions.  He added that if the 

owners purchased the lots with the thought that the PD could be changed, that was a gamble 

they were willing to take. 

 

Mr. Maxwell said that based on the original negotiations, the neighborhoods should try and 

blend in with each other and thought a transition area was a good idea. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if it would be possible to stucco over Insulated Concrete Forms 

(ICF). 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that from a masonry standpoint, adjacent neighborhoods could build a 

home of brick or ICF and do the exterior cladding in stucco, but under the current PD the plans 

would have to be submitted to the CBO and he/she would determine if the architectural 

character of that home was “equal to or better than” the homes in surrounding neighborhoods.   

 

Commissioner Maxwell said it made sense to amend the PD to remove the CBO from the 

equation, but was concerned there might be some other problems arise because of that. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  11 

Mr. Shacklett said that was why staff suggested making it clear in the PD that the stucco was 

only an exterior cladding material and the CBO would only review whether the underlying 

building material met the City’s masonry requirement. 

 

Commissioner Springs suggested a transition zone could pertain to the lots on the periphery of 

those facing Chainhurst Drive. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that a Creek Hollow resident had proposed that Lots 1, 12-15, and 22-23 

would not have 100% stucco since they would face the Creek Hollow neighborhood.  He 

thought those homes might then fall within the 50% group. 

 

Commissioner Springs stated that 50% would provide quite a bit of latitude in designing the 

homes facing Chainhurst Drive. 

 

Mr. Chavez asked the Commission to consider, before recommending a transition area, that 

Crystal Creek was a stand-alone neighborhood and separated from Creek Hollow by Chainhurst 

Drive, a wall, landscape buffer and screening, as well as a 4 to 8-foot grade change. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell said he was still concerned about the expectations based on the original 

negotiations and did not think a transition area could be created with just screening. 

 

Mr. Chavez replied the majority of the transition items (screening, grade change) were already 

in place prior to Crystal Creek being developed. 

 

Commissioner DePuy acknowledged the negotiations from 2010, but felt the current 

compromises had also been negotiated in good faith and the Commission should move forward 

on those changes.  She also thought the Commission should be opened minded about new 

building materials and techniques. 

 

Commissioner Ferrell said he thought a lot of the concerns were based on fear of the unknown 

and suggested moving the item forward to the City Council. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-14 

with the following changes to the conditions:   

 

- Allow ten (10) homes to be 100 percent stucco in-lieu-of thirteen (13) homes; five 

(5) homes to be up to 50 percent stucco; and remainder of the homes to be limited 

to 25 percent stucco.  

- Limit Lots 1, 12-15, 22, and 23 to a maximum of 50 percent stucco with the north 

elevations limited to 50 percent as well.  

- Revise “Garage Access” to allow no more than two front-facing garage bays.  

 

second by Commissioner Springs.  

 

Commissioner Springs asked if Mr. Maxwell would increase the number of 50% 

stucco homes to eight (8). 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  12 

 

Commissioner Maxwell declined to amend his motion. 

 

Motion failed 3 to 3 with Vice Chair Bright and Commissioners DePuy and Springs 

opposed. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-14 

with the following changes to the conditions:   

 

- Allow ten (10) homes to be 100 percent stucco in-lieu-of thirteen (13) homes; 

eight (8) homes to be up to 50 percent stucco in-lieu-of five (5); and remainder of 

the homes to be limited to 25 percent stucco.  

- Limit Lots 1, 12-15, 22, and 23 to a maximum of 50 percent stucco with the north 

elevations limited to 50 percent as well.  

- Revise “Garage Access” to allow no more than two front-facing garage bays.  

 

second by Commissioner Springs.  

 

Motion approved 4-2 with Vice Chair Bright and Commissioner DePuy opposed. 

 

6. Zoning File 15-21 – Banana RC Raceway:  Consider and take the necessary action on a 

request for a Special Permit for an indoor radio controlled race track to be located at 521 W. 

Campbell Road, south side of Campbell Road, east of Nantucket Drive  The property is 

currently zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail.   

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for a radio controlled race 

track in conjunction with a newly opened toy and hobby shop.  He added the occupant’s hobby 

shop currently occupies 5,000 square feet of an 11,250 square foot space and if the Special 

Permit was approved, the race track would expand into the remaining space. 

 

Mr. Shacklett noted that in addition to the race track for the radio controlled race cars, the space 

would also include work areas for racers to work on their 1/10
th

 scale cars.  In addition, race 

events would be held and could run until 12 midnight, but no food or drink service would be 

associated with the use. 

 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by stating no correspondence had been received and 

suggested that if the Commission approved the request, it would be limited to the area marked 

on Exhibit B. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Randy Novak, 1406 Timber Lake Circle, Richardson, Texas, said he was the proprietor of 

the hobby shop and was available to answer any questions. 

 

Commission Ferrell asked if the hobby shop was open for business. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  13 

Mr. Novak replied the hobby was currently open. 

 

No other comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed 

the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-21 as 

presented; second by Commissioner DePuy.  Motion approved 6-0. 

 

7. Zoning File 15-22 – Wee Care Day and Night Childcare Learning Center:  Consider and 

take the necessary action on a request for a Special Permit for a childcare center to be located at 

132 N. Glenville Drive, east side of Glenville Drive, north of Belt Line Road.  The property is 

currently zoned O-M Office. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for a child daycare center 

with extended hours (6:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m.) in a former office building.  He added there 

would be an outdoor play area and that area along with the number of workers, number of 

children, and food handling were all regulated by the State of Texas. 

 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by reviewing the floor plan and noting there would be 

no exterior expansions to the building, but changes would be made to the fire lane, driveway 

radius, dumpster location, landscaping and exterior painting. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if there would be vans for child transport on the site. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied they would eventually have three vans and would park them towards the 

back of the property. 

 

Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Ms. Alisa White-Burton, 2907 Nova Drive, Garland, Texas, said that in her professional life as 

an instructor and corporate trainer for Allied Health Programs she noticed a need for a daycare 

with extended hours for the children of health care workers who work non-traditional shifts. 

 

Ms. White-Burton explained that establishing an extended hour daycare would help relieve the 

stress of trying to find care for the children of parents working times other than the first shift of 

the day. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if there would be the possibility of a parent dropping their child off 

at the beginning of the day and not picking them up until late at night.  She also wanted to know 

if a playground would be a part of the day care. 

 

Ms. White-Burton replied that under the guidelines from the State of Texas Department of 

Family Protective Services, a parent could leave their child at the daycare less than 24 hours 

before the situation came under a separate set of regulations.   

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  14 

Regarding a playground, Ms. White-Burton stated they are required by the State of Texas to 

have a fenced, outdoor play area, but with the scheduled opening date in December or January, 

they did not anticipate having playground equipment until the spring. 

 

Chairman Hand said the Commission had received three speaker cards supporting the proposal 

daycare and thought the proposal would be a growth industry and beneficial for the City. 

 

No other comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed 

the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-22 as 

presented; second by Commissioner Springs.  Motion approved 6-0. 

 

8. Zoning File 15-23 – RISD Operations Center:  Consider and take the necessary action on a 

request for a change in zoning from O-M Office, R-1500-M Residential, and R-850-M 

Residential to PD Planned Development to accommodate the development of the Richardson 

ISD Operations Service Center, including, but not limited to, office, motor vehicle 

storage/repair, and warehouse uses.  The property is located on the east side of Greenville 

Avenue north of Walnut Streets 

 

Mr. Chavez advised that Richardson Independent School District (RISD) was requesting to 

rezone approximately 42 acres of land located at Greenville Avenue and Abrams Avenue for 

use as an operations service center.  He added the property currently has three (3) different 

zoning districts: two are residential zoning and the third is office zoning. 

 

Mr. Chavez explained that RISD was planning on developing only the northern 14.5 acres of the 

site for the operations service center (Exhibit B-1) and although the use of the property was 

deemed a “public building” and the use was allowed by right in all zoning districts, the request 

for a PD Planned Development District would allow RISD to modify the development standards 

(Exhibit C).  

 

Mr. Chavez described the landscape buffer and other methods that would be used in the public 

and non-public areas to screen the property especially from the residential area along the 

northern property line. 

 

Mr. Chavez concluded his presentation by noting the proposed setbacks would increase the 

distance between the proposed building heights and the accessory buildings to the adjacent 

property owners.  He added that the minimum standards would apply to the entire tract of land 

even though only a portion was being developed at this time. 

 

Commissioner Ferrell asked to confirm if RISD, under the current zoning, could build 

everything they wanted with the exception of the 45-foot building and noted that it seemed 

RISD was requesting additional restrictions for setbacks, wall heights and landscape buffers. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  15 

Mr. Chavez confirmed that RISD was requesting increased restrictions on the property and, if 

the property was not rezoned, all the one story structures would be limited to twenty-five (25) 

feet and the warehouse could not be built at 45 feet. 

 

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Ken Kessler, PBK Architects, 14001 Dallas Pkwy # 400, Dallas, Texas, representing RISD, 

stated the school district would be moving their service center from the current location at 

Greenville Avenue/Phillips (next to the district’s administration building) to the proposed 

location.  He added that only twelve (12) buses would be stored in the new service yard and the 

remainder would be stored at the Christa McAuliffe Learning Center.   

 

Mr. Kessler stated there was a possibility in the future of adding classroom space for building 

trades, agriculture and electrical instruction. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked how many employees will be housed at the site. 

 

Mr. Kessler said they would be providing parking for 200 employees, but 200 employees would 

not be in the facility at the same time as some of their work will take them off site to other RISD 

buildings. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if district owned the property and for how long. 

 

Mr. Kessler replied the district did own the property and had owned it for quite a while and Mr. 

Chavez added the property had been owned at one time by Restland Cemetery. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if the only access to the service yard would be from southbound 

Abrams Road. 

 

Mr. Kessler said there would be two access points - one through Abrams Road and one through 

Greenville Avenue.  He added the employees and buses would enter the site from Greenville 

Avenue. 

 

Chairman Hand called for comments in opposition. 

 

Mr. Jay Son, Director of Bohyun Buddha Temple and Zen Center, 1130 Abrams Road, 

Richardson, Texas, stated he was opposed to the construction of the service center based on the 

temple’s need for peace and quiet, as well as the possibility of having hazardous material in the 

service yard.  He added that one of the reasons they moved to the site was the adjacent 

residential and cemetery land that would provide them with a tranquil setting.   

 

Chairman Hand asked if a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) had been performed for the site. 

 

Mr. Chavez replied a TIA had been done and the report looked at only the development of the 

14.5 acres and surrounding development.  Under the parameters, Greenville Avenue and 

Abrams Road functioned at a Level of Service “B” and with the proposed development the 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  16 

service level would stay the same, but there would be a 47% increase in the AM traffic and a 

91% decrease in the PM traffic. 

 

Mr. Chavez pointed out that another part of the TIA pointed out improvements that would need 

to be made to the storage and transition turn lanes along Greenville Avenue.  In addition, staff 

was recommending that RISD submit a new TIA if the southern portion of the property was 

ever developed to determine the impact on traffic in the area. 

 

Ms. Shirley Kaczka, 1217 Whispering Oaks, Richardson, Texas, stated she was opposed to the 

service center and asked the Commission to table the request because she felt the residents in 

the area did not have enough notice and was concerned about the value of the area homes.  She 

also wanted to know if any representatives from Richland College had been contacted because 

she felt they would have some input as to the use of the property that could be beneficial to the 

college students. 

 

Ms. Martha Jaynes, 418 Winding Brook Lane, Richardson, Texas, stated she was also opposed 

to the service center based on increased traffic, proposed use as a repair center and the storage 

of hazardous materials.  She said she had concerns over the effect on property values in the area 

and felt there should have been more outreach to the adjacent homeowners. 

 

Ms. Carol Clifford, 407 Countryside Lane, Richardson, Texas, expressed concerns and asked for 

answers to some questions:  

 What would be the hours of operation;  

 Would the lights at the service center be on 24 hours a day;  

 Would the service center adversely affect the power station on Walnut Hill Lane and 

Abrams Road;  

 How would traffic impact an already busy area especially with the new apartments under 

construction at Buckingham and Abrams Roads; and 

 How hazardous waste would be delivered and removed. 

 

Chairman Hand called for comments for those in favor of the request. 

 

Mr. Michael Longanecker, Executive Director of Facilities for RISD, 400 S. Greenville Avenue, 

Richardson, Texas, stated the proposed site was closer to the center of RISD since the majority 

of the schools in the district were actually located in the City of Dallas.  He also noted that the 

bus traffic would most likely remain the same since the buses are housed at the Christa 

McAuliffe Learning Center just north of the current site. 

 

Commissioner Ferrell asked for answers to the questions posed by Ms. Clifford.  He also wanted 

to know if the facility could be moved to a different section of the property. 

 

Mr. Longanecker said the typical start time at the service center would be 7:00 a.m. with staff 

leaving by 4:30 p.m.  His staff supervisor, custodial and grounds staff come to the site in the 

morning and then leave the site via a district vehicle to their individual assignments.  He also 

pointed out that the Brick Row residential development was recently constructed next to their 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  17 

current service center without any problems and they had proposed increased setbacks, higher 

walls, larger landscape buffers, and moved the highest use to the center of the property to be 

sensitive to the adjacent property owners. 

 

Regarding the southern end of the property, Mr. Longanecker said that area might be better 

suited for other uses, possibly commercial, because of the frontage on two major roads. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if there would be a problem with increased noise in the area.  She 

also wanted to know where the buses would be serviced. 

 

Mr. Longanecker said he did not receive any complaints from the Brick Row facility that was 

adjacent to the current service center and the buses would be serviced in the transportation shop 

inside the garage.  He also pointed out that the garage and shops were located on the southern 

edge of the site closest to the property the district already owns. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if the fence would be eight (8) or ten (10) feet. 

 

Mr. Longanecker said their fence would be ten (10) feet even the though the current code 

allowed a minimum of six (6) feet. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if there had been any thought given to building in a more industrial area. 

 

Mr. Longanecker replied that open land in Richardson was hard to come by and since the 

district had owned the land for sixteen years, they had been cautious as to the highest and best 

use of the property for the district and the community. 

 

Mr. David Abernathy, 405 Fieldwood Drive, Richardson, Texas, said he lived just north of the 

property and was opposed to the current proposed location and felt it would be better suited on 

the southern, industrial edge of the property away from the homes. 

 

Ms. Clifford asked if two separate facilities were being combined into one site because one of 

the bus storage areas was currently located in a non-residential area. 

 

Mr. Longanecker replied that the buses will be staying at their current location at the Christa 

McAuliffe Learning Center and only the repairs would take place at the new service center, 

similar to the current location that is adjacent to a residential area. 

 

Mr. Kessler added that the current location where buses are maintained is located in a more 

heavily populated area than the new location and has generated very few complaints. 

 

Ms. Jaynes stated that as far as comparing Brick Row residential to the current proposal, those 

homeowners knew what they were moving next to when they bought their homes as opposed to 

the homeowners adjacent to the proposed site who thought they were going to be living next to 

cemetery property. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  18 

Mr. Kessler stated that RISD was moving their service center one mile south on Greenville 

Avenue and it would not impact the traffic any more than it already had since the same number 

of buses will use the proposed service center as use the current center. 

 

As far as hazardous chemicals, Mr. Kessler said the school district did not store hazardous 

chemicals, but they would temporarily house fertilizer on site before it is distributed throughout 

the district. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if RISD had reached out to the neighborhood association. 

 

Mr. Longanecker replied the required notices had been sent out to the adjacent property owners. 

 

With no further comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell thanked those who spoke for coming out and sharing their comments, 

and explained that if the item was approved it would go before the City Council, but restated 

that the service center was a public building and, by right, could go into any existing zoning 

district.  He explained that in exchange for the higher building requests, RISD was proposing to 

increase the size of the setbacks to separate the buildings from the surrounding properties. 

 

Chairman Hand said he thought the premise was a good idea to consolidate RISD facilities and 

complimented the applicant on moving the noisier activities towards the center of the property, 

but did have a concern about where the site was located based on the proximity to the residential 

areas.   

 

Commissioner DePuy stated she definitely thought the wall around the proposed service center 

should be 10 feet high to help cut down on any noise, and reminded the audience of the 

concessions made via the setbacks and wall to compensate for the location. 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-23 as 

presented; second by Commissioner Maxwell.   

 

Mr. Chavez asked if the motion should contain a mandate for 10-foot wall and, if so, 

the condition in Exhibit C should be amended.   

 

Vice Chair Bright amended his motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-23 

with a change to Exhibit C, Section 9, Item 1 to read “a masonry wall not less than 

10 feet in height shall be constructed as depicted on Exhibit B1”; second by 

Commissioner Maxwell. 

 

Chairman Hand asked where the 10-foot walls would be located. 

 

Mr. Chavez replied the walls would be located along the perimeter of the property 

enclosing the service yard area. 

 

Motion approved 6-0. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 1, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-09-01Minutes.doc  19 

 

ADJOURN 

 

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular 

business meeting at 11:01 p.m. 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 

City Plan Commission 

 


